
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda 

 
Board of Directors 
 
Friday, November 6, 2015 
Following CAA Finance Committee Meeting 
Kent County Commission Chambers 
300 Monroe Avenue, NW, Grand Rapids, MI 
 
 
1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock 
 
2. Salute to Grand Rapids Police Department      Steve Heacock 
 
3. Minutes of September 4, 2015            Action 
 
4. Committee Reports 
  
 A. Operations Committee 
  
 B. Finance Committee  
  i. Acceptance of Sept. 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements  Action 
  ii. SMG – Sept. 2015 Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®   Information 
   Financial Statements 
  iii. SMG Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and for the   Action 
   Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 – Deloitte & Touche, LLP 
 
5. FY 2016 Budget Amendment        Action 
 
6. Ice Floor Compressor         Action 
 
7. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars         Rich MacKeigan 
 
8. Public Comment 
 
9. Adjournment  
 
 
 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, December 4, 2015 
At Van Andel Arena® 

 



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Friday, September 4, 2015 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 8:55 a.m.  Secretary/Treasurer Richard Winn 
recorded the meeting minutes.   
 
 
 

  

Members Present:  Steve Heacock, Chairperson 
   Lew Chamberlin 
   George Heartwell 
   Birgit Klohs 
   Charlie Secchia 
   Floyd Wilson, Jr.  
   Richard Winn 
    
Members Absent: None 
    
Staff/Others:  Tom Bennett   Experience Grand Rapids 
   Jim Harger   MLive/The Grand Rapids Press 
   Diane Jones   Kent County Commissioner 
   Mike Lloyd   Broadway Grand Rapids 
   Chris Machuta   SMG 
   Rich MacKeigan  SMG 
   Doug Small   Experience Grand Rapids 
   Eddie Tadlock   SMG 
   Susan Waddell   CAA 
   Jana Wallace   City of Grand Rapids 
   Jim Watt   SMG 
 

2. Broadway Grand Rapids – Phantom Update 
 
Mike Lloyd, Executive Director for Broadway Grand Rapids, expressed his appreciation for CAA support 
of the stage house infrastructure improvements.  The changes were made backstage and, while fans will 
not see them directly, will allow for larger Broadway shows to visit DeVos Performance Hall.  Phantom 
of the Opera has been booked for a several-week engagement in spring 2016.  Broadway staff has been in 
talks with the promoters of Wicked for possible show dates.  The project was estimated to cost $350,000, 
and Broadway Grand Rapids held a fundraising campaign to help defray the expense.  Mr. Lloyd 
presented the CAA with a check in the amount of $110,000.   
 
3. Minutes of Prior Meetings 
 
Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Heartwell, to approve the June 5, 2015, Minutes.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
September 4, 2015 – 2 
 
4. Committee Reports 
 
 A. Operations Committee 
 
Mr. Chamberlin stated that the Operations Committee took a summer hiatus and there was nothing new to 
report. 
 
Mr. Bennett provided an overview of the CVB’s recent sales activities, marketing efforts, and major bid 
presentations.  July posted record-breaking numbers for hotel occupancy-81.2%.  The state’s average 
occupancy rate as 75%, last year’s occupancy rate was 73%.  The average daily rate was $112 compared 
to $99 last year and compared to the state’s average of $107.  The sales staff booked seven groups and 
hosted 15 site visits. 
 
 B. 
 

Finance Committee 

  i. Acceptance of July 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Motion:  Mr. Winn, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to accept the July 2015 Consolidated 
Financial Statements.  Motion carried. 

 
  ii. SMG Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® July 2015 
   Financial Statements 
 
The SMG financial statements were included in the agenda packet as information items.   
 
5.  Application to Liquor Control Commission for Special License 
 
Staff requested approval to submit an application to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for special 
liquor licenses in conjunction with the International Wine, Beer & Food Festival that will be held 
November 19-21, 2015.   
 
Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Chamberlin, to approve an application to the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission for special liquor licenses in conjunction with the International Wine, Beer & Food 
Festival.  Motion carried. 
 
6. Directors and Officers Insurance Renewal 
 
Motion by Mr. Winn, support by Mr. Heartwell, to approve renewal of the directors’ and officers’ 
liability insurance.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
7. Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of a Neutral Host Cellular 
 DAS License Agreement with Concourse Communication Group, LLC 
 
Boardmember Klohs, supported by Boardmember Wilson, moves the adoption of the following resolution: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board at its meeting on October 5, 2014, authorized SMG along with the 
assistance of legal counsel to negotiate an agreement with Boingo a.k.a. Concourse Communication 
Group, LLC (“CCG”) to provide a neutral host cellular distributed antenna system (“DAS”) in 
conjunction with a full WiFi system at the Van Andel Arena; and  
 
  
 
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
September 4, 2015 – 3 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a DAS agreement without a full WiFi system has been negotiated with CCG which 
SMG has recommended be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Board has agreed to approve a DAS agreement with CCG to provide DAS 
service at the Van Andel Arena. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
 1. That the Neutral Host Cellular DAS License Agreement (the “Agreement”) between the 
Grand Rapids – Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”) and CCG in the form presented at 
this meeting is approved with such modifications not materially adverse to the CAA approved as to 
content by the CAA Chairperson and as to form by CAA legal counsel. 
 
 2. That the CAA Chairperson is authorized and directed to execute the approved Agreement 
for and on behalf of the CAA. 
 
 3 That all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the same 
are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict. 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
8. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar 
 
Mr. Machuta presented the event calendars for the Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®.  Mr. Tadlock 
reported that 130 artists will be exhibiting at DeVos Place® during ArtPrize.  Once again, we will hold a 
public reception on opening night, which is September 23.   
 
Chair Heacock thanked Mr. Delabbio and the County for use of the County Commission Chambers.  Mr. 
Heacock stated the June budget meeting will be a joint meeting of the CAA Board, CAA Finance 
Committee, and CAA Operations Committee, instead of each body meeting one after the other.  Mr. 
Heacock referenced the stage house renovations that benefit primarily Broadway Grand Rapids.  Mr. 
MacKeigan negotiated a very fair deal for Broadway to bear some of the cost.  Mr. Winn stated that 
Wolfgang Puck’s The Kitchen is now open.   
 
8. Adjournment 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:35 a.m.   
 
 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, October 2, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

     ______________________________________   
Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary 
 
 



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility
Rolling Forecast 2
Year-to-Date Comparable 3
Significant Notes 4

Van Andel Arena®
Rolling Forecast 5
Year-to-Date Comparable 6

DeVos Place®
Rolling Forecast 7
Year-to-Date Comparable 8

Administrative Accounts
Year-to-Date Comparable 9

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Financial Report
September 30, 2015



-1-

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 13                 13                 14                   5                     7                    7                             
Attendance 70,398          81,500          69,831            49,480            59,500           53,986                    
Event Income 628,422$      624,154$      690,373$        606,698$        576,758$       668,513$                

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 96                 80                 85                   45                   34                  35                           
Attendance 64,984          68,480          74,083            36,050            34,000           39,960                    
Event Income 835,978$      1,096,103$   991,545$        523,610$        706,996$       589,537$                

Prior Year Budget Actual
Operating Income (Loss) (406,513)$       (263,297)$      6,278$                    
Capital/Repair/Replacement (166,578)         (969,174)        (969,174)                 
Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance (573,091)$       (1,232,471)$   (962,896)$               (1)

*NOTES: (1):
      Unrestricted Fund Balance @ June 30, 2015* 21,433,667$   

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard
Year-To-Date (3 Months)

September 30, 2015

DeVos Place®

FY2016



-3-

Annual Year-To-Date

FY 2015 FY 2016 Percentage FY 2015 FY 2016 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1 - 9/30 7/1 - 9/30 Change

Van Andel Arena
   Operating - Revenues 5,685,429$      5,073,448$      (10.8) 1,246,597$    1,292,113$      3.7
                    - Expenses - Facilities (4,073,499)       (4,122,352)       (1.2) (948,733)        (951,320)          (0.3)
                               - Base Management Fees (171,770)          (176,065)          (2.5) (42,943)          (42,943)            -               
                               - Incentive Fee (98,628)            (5,552)                94.4            -                     -                       -               
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,341,532        769,479 (42.6) 254,921 297,850 16.8
   Parking 164,661           160,084           (2.8) 26,524           33,222             25.3
   Pedestrian Safety (92,151)            (108,000)          (17.2) (4,903)            (5,718)              (16.6)          
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 1,414,042        821,563           (41.9) 276,542         325,354           17.7

DeVos Place Convention Center
   Operating - Revenues 6,102,055        5,913,710        (3.1)             844,289         1,000,835        18.5
                   - Expenses - Facilities (5,914,050)       (5,742,406)       2.9 (1,383,209)     (1,298,333)       6.1
                              - Base Management Fees (171,770)          (176,065)          (2.5) (42,943)          (42,943)            -               
                              - Incentive Fee (244,912)          (346,578)            (41.5)           -                     -                       -               
   Net Operating Loss (228,677)          (351,339)          (53.6) (581,863)        (340,441)          41.5
   Parking 920,421           915,239           (0.6) 48,977           84,511             72.6
   Pedestrian Safety (51,417)            (66,000)            (28.4)           (621)               (3,189)              (413.5)        
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 640,327           497,900           (22.2) (533,507)        (259,119)          51.4

Other
   Revenues 263,935           185,000           (29.9) 15,879           12,112             (23.7)          
   Expenses (764,680)          (837,450)          (9.5) (165,427)        (72,069)            56.4
     Net Other (500,745)          (652,450)          (30.3)           (149,548)        (59,957)            59.9

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 1,553,624        667,013           (406,513)        6,278               

Capital/Repair Expenditures (1,280,045)       (2,714,000)       (166,578)        (969,174)          
Results Net of Capital Expenditures 273,579$         (2,046,987)$     (573,091)$      (962,896)$        

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending June 30, 2016



-4-

Van Andel Arena®
•      Page 1 - Seven concerts generated $668,513 in event revenue, an increase of 10.2% over

prior year (5 concerts) of $606,698.
•        Page 3 - Net proceeds, of $325,354, increased by 17.7% over prior year of $276,542.

DeVos Place®
•      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $589,537 in event revenue, an 

increase of 12.6% over prior year (attendance up from 36,050 to 39,960) of $523,610.
•        Page 3 - Net "cost," of ($259,119), improved by 51.4% over prior year of ($533,507).

Significant Notes



- 5-

VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 14 84                     98 98 -                     
ATTENDANCE 69,831 493,169            548,000 563,000 (15,000)                

DIRECT EVENT INCOME 341,254 828,571            1,207,613 1,169,825 37,788                
ANCILLARY INCOME 207,402 1,130,841         1,298,955 1,338,243 (39,288)                
TICKETING REBATES 141,717 380,873            498,291 522,590 (24,299)                

TOTAL EVENT INCOME 690,373 2,340,285 3,004,859 3,030,658 (25,799)                

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 601,740 1,441,050         2,055,717 2,042,790 12,927                
TOTAL INCOME 1,292,113        3,781,335         5,060,576           5,073,448 (12,872)                

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 42,655 165,106            207,761 207,761 -                     
FINANCE 47,690 190,088            237,778 237,778 -                     
MARKETING 64,672 267,317            331,989 331,989 -                     
OPERATIONS 464,895 1,305,461         1,770,356 1,770,356 -                     
BOX OFFICE 22,910 128,333            151,243 151,243 -                     
LUXURY SEATING 11,143 87,656              98,799 98,799 -                     
SKYWALK ADMIN 10,024 41,636              51,660 51,660 -                     
OVERHEAD 330,271 1,118,560         1,448,831 1,448,831 -                     

  TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 994,263           3,304,157         4,298,417           4,298,417 -                     

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 297,850 477,178            762,159              775,031 (12,872)              

LESS INCENTIVE FEE 2,402                2,402 5,552                   3,150                  

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 297,850           474,776            759,757              769,479               (9,722)                

Comments:

The first quarter of the fiscal year saw the Arena perform ahead of budget
overall and consistent with prior year.  It is expected that the second quarter General Manager
will be a little slower bring the facility back to budgeted levels and still
too early to make any major adjustments to the second half of the fiscal
year.

Director of Finance



-6-

VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH September September September
Actual Budget FY 2015

Number of Events 9 8 10
Attendance 32,102 39,000 40,239
Direct Event Income $97,400 $79,134 $43,997
Ancillary Income 64,397 88,830 116,768
Other Event Income 41,788 44,220 71,027
Other Operating Income 190,178 170,496 223,025
Indirect Expenses (289,623) (358,200) (341,278)
Net Income $104,140 $24,480 $113,539

YTD YTD 2016 YTD 2016 YTD 2015
Actual Budget Prior Year

Number of Events 14 13 13
Attendance 69,831 81,500 70,398
Direct Event Income $341,254 $248,134 $209,464
Ancillary Income 207,402 221,250 239,286
Other Event Income 141,717 154,770 179,672
Other Operating Income 601,740 523,548 618,175
Indirect Expenses (994,263) (1,074,600) (991,676)
Net Income $297,850 $73,102 $254,921

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in ahead of budget on the strength of the strong selling Janet Jackson and
Ariana Grande concerts.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell below expectations as sales for Ringling fell below expectations and the two
concerts, by nature of the events, were below average concessions events.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in below budget for the month, however, back in line with overall expectations.



-7-

DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 85 397                       482 467 15                         
ATTENDANCE 74,083 438,417                512,500 482,600 29,900                  

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 518,160 2,511,300             3,029,460 2,939,400             90,060                  
ANCILLARY REVENUE 411,074 2,158,826             2,569,900 2,639,860             (69,960)                 
TICKETING REBATES 62,311 260,139                322,450 302,450                20,000                  

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 991,545 4,930,265 5,921,810 5,881,710 40,100

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 9,290 22,710                  32,000 32,000                  -                       

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 1,000,835 4,952,975             5,953,810             5,913,710 40,100                  

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 45,730 157,731                203,461 203,461                -                       
FINANCE 56,573 203,081                259,654 259,654                -                       
MARKETING 25,050 101,546                126,596 126,596                -                       
OPERATIONS 347,141 1,193,888             1,541,029 1,541,029             -                       
EVENT SERVICES 221,154 875,513                1,096,667 1,096,667             -                       
BOX OFFICE 26,776 65,156                  91,932 91,932                  -                       
SALES 86,457 315,591                402,048 402,048                -                       
OVERHEAD 532,396 1,664,688             2,197,084 2,197,084             -                       

  TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 1,341,276             4,577,194             5,918,471 5,918,471 -                       

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (340,441) 375,781                35,339                  (4,761) 40,100                  

INCENTIVE FEE 341,482                341,482 346,578 5,096                    

NET  OPERATING REVENUE OVER (340,441) 34,299                  (306,143)               (351,339) 45,196                  
  OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

DeVos Place finishes the first quarter of the fiscal year consistent with budget
overall and exceeding prior year performance.  Ancillary income is down, however, General Manager
has been offset by savings in expenses.  

Forecast calls for a slight increase to revenues from budget and currently showing
no change in anticipated expenses as no material trends have been seen to date.

Finance Director



-8-

DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH September September September
Actual Budget FY 2015

Number of Events 33 31 45
Attendance 31,491 28,133 22,781
Direct Event Income $176,320 $152,821 $163,785
Ancillary Income 173,058 129,704 170,067
Other Event Income 49,816 29,852 4,657
Other Operating Income 4,317 2,666 3,642
Indirect Expenses (449,002) (493,206) (531,365)
Net Income ($45,491) ($178,163) ($189,214)

YTD YTD 2016 YTD 2016 YTD 2015
Actual Budget Prior Year

Number of Events 85 80 96
Attendance 74,083 68,480 64,984
Direct Event Income $518,160 $495,960 $422,242
Ancillary Income 411,074 556,291 393,651
Other Event Income 62,311 43,852 20,085
Other Operating Income 9,290 7,998 8,311
Indirect Expenses (1,341,276) (1,479,618) (1,426,152)
Net Income ($340,441) ($375,517) ($581,863)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in ahead of budget overall as convention events performed well and
the Theater had a very strong selling Jerry Seinfeld and Broadway's run of Newsies.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income performed well compared to budget as spending in most areas was
strong.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in ahead of budget overall but more due to timing and the
first quarter savings will most likely true up some by the mid point of the fiscal year.



-9-

FY 2015 FY 2016 Percentage FY 2015 FY 2016 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1-9/30 7/1/-9/30 Change

Other
Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 142,510$     150,000$     5.3               15,879$           9,032$         (43.1)            
Miscellaneous 121,425       35,000         (71.2)            -                      3,080           100.0+

Rolling Forecast (YTD Actual) 263,935       185,000       (29.9)            15,879             12,112         (23.7)            

Expenses
Marketing (CVB/Sports) 125,000       125,000       -                 50,000             -                   (100.0)          
Diversity Initiative 123,689       125,000       1.1               8,526               14,636         71.7             
Wages/Benefits 107,073       122,605       14.5             21,325             16,680         (21.8)            
Marketing Campaign 62,711         100,000       59.5             -                      -                   -                 
Professional Services 66,889         68,000         1.7               6,093               8,841           45.1             
DID Assessment 39,720         40,500         2.0               24,786             -                   (100.0)          
Food & Beverage Repairs -                   40,000         100.0+ -                      -                   -                 
Consulting Services 138,973       72,345         (47.9)            34,226             -                   (100.0)          
Landscaping 38,920         30,000         (22.9)            -                      -                   -                 
Procurement of Art 23,012         30,000         30.4             350                  8,166           2,233.1        
Insurance 22,879         24,000         4.9               18,500             21,861         18.2             
Supplies/Other 15,814         60,000         279.4           1,621               1,885           16.3             

764,680 837,450 9.5               165,427 72,069 (56.4)            

Net Proceeds - Operating (500,745)$    (652,450)$    (30.2)            (149,548)$       (59,957)$      59.9             

Year-to-Date

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail
September 30, 2015

Annual























































































 

 

 
 
 

Van Andel Arena®

MEMORANDUM 

 / 
DeVos Place 

 
 
To:  CAA Finance Committee 
  CAA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Richard MacKeigan – Regional General Manager 
 
Date:  October 20, 2015 
 
Re:  Utility Metering and Long-Term Utility Use Study 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I am requesting approval to amend the FY 2016 budget to include an amount not to exceed 
$125,000 for a “Utility Metering and Long-Term Utility Use Study.”  This is the second phase of 
the first phase (Energy Audit and Capital Assessment) that was approved last fiscal year and 
concluded by Progressive AE.   
 
The venues have already realized savings that have more than offset the first phase work, and 
we expect to see the same in the second phase work.  This second phase will also continue to 
assess opportunities for further savings by integrating Amway Grand Plaza hotel utilities as well. 
AGPH has committed to a second phase contract as well.  
 
The study would be led by Progressive AE.  Should you have any questions, please contact me 
at your convenience.  Thank you for your consideration.   
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Amend the FY 2016 budget to include a $125,000 line item for a “Utility 
Metering and Long-Term Utility Use Study.” 



 

 

 
 
 

Van Andel Arena®

MEMORANDUM 

 / 
DeVos Place 

 
 
To:  CAA Finance Committee 
  CAA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Richard MacKeigan – Regional General Manager 
 
Date:  October 20, 2015 
 
Re:  Ice Floor Compressor 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I am requesting approval to amend the FY 2016 budget to include a $60,000 line item to 
purchase a compressor for the ice plant.  During the course of our annual maintenance on the 
three ice plant compressors, we discovered that one of them needs to be replaced or rebuilt. 
There are three compressors for the ice plant.  At any given time, two are in actual use.  The 
third is effectively a backup unit.  We do, however, rotate use among all three to balance run 
hours and keep all three up and operational. 
 
Our recommendation is to replace this unit with a new one.  The cost is $55,791 and the 
warranty on a new compressor is 2 years. 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact me at your convenience.  Thank you for your 
consideration.   
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Amend the FY 2016 budget to include a $60,000 line item for an Ice Floor 
Compressor. 


	Agenda.CAA
	Board of Directors
	Friday, November 6, 2015
	1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock
	ii. SMG – Sept. 2015 Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®   Information
	Financial Statements
	iii. SMG Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and for the   Action


	September.2015
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
	Friday, September 4, 2015
	Attendance 
	i. Acceptance of July 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements

	1. That the Neutral Host Cellular DAS License Agreement (the “Agreement”) between the Grand Rapids – Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”) and CCG in the form presented at this meeting is approved with such modifications not materially adverse to the CAA approved as to content by the CAA Chairperson and as to form by CAA legal counsel.
	2. That the CAA Chairperson is authorized and directed to execute the approved Agreement for and on behalf of the CAA.
	3 That all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

	September 2015
	Cover Sheet
	Dashboard
	Consolidated Statement
	Significant Notes
	VAA #1
	VAA 2
	DVP #1
	DVP #2
	Administrative Accounts

	SMG Financial Statement.September 2015
	SMG Audit.FY2015
	Memo - FY 2016 Budget Amendment
	Memo - Ice Floor Compressor

